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RICE SULLIVAN,LLC+++
+

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable President and Board of Trustees
Village of Swansea
Swansea, lllinois

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Village of Swansea, as of and for the year ended April 30, 2014, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial staternents based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Swansea, as of April 30, 2014,
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in fiscal year 2014, the Village adopted new
accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 65, lfems Previously Reported as Assefs and
Liabilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, defined benefit
pension plan information and other post-employment benefits information on pages 6-13, 55-59,
60-61 and 62 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financiai statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. e have
applied certain limited procedures fo the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Cur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Village of Swansea's basic financial statements. The combining fund
financial statements and the other individual fund budgetary comparison information are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining fund financial statements and the other individual fund budgetary comparison
information are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
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information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepared the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional

procedures in accordance with auditing standards

generally accepted in the United States of

America. In our opinion, the combining fund finangial statements and the other individual fund
budgetary comparison information are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic

financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standarfs, we have also issued our report dated
September 3, 2014, on our consideration of the Village of Swansea’s internal control over financial

repotting and on our tests of its compliance with ce

in provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,

and grant agreements and other matters. The purppse of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,

and not to provide an opinion on internal control ov
report is an integral part of an audit performed in acc

r financial reporting or on compliance. That
prdance with Government Auditing Standards

in considering the Village of Swansea’s intemal contrgl over financial reporting and compliance.

EICE SMU.J Z T Lee

Swansea, lllinois
September 3, 2014
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RICE SULLIVA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

DN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCI

STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERN

ENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable President and Board of Trustees
Village of Swansea
Swansea, lllinois

We have audited, in accordance with the audiing

States of America and the standards applicable

standards generally accepted in the United
to fihancial audits contained in Government

Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the busifess-type activities, each major fund, and the

aggregate remaining fund information of the Village

bf Swansea, as of and for the year ended April

30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statgments, which collectively comprise the Village

of Swansea’s basic financial statements, and have
2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the finan
Swansea's internal control over financial reporti

ssued our report thereon dated September 3,

¢ial statements, we considered the Village of
ng (internal control) to determine the audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on

the financial statements, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Village of Swansea’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveriess of the Village of Swansea’s internal coptrol.

A deficiently in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow

management or employees, in the normal cour

of performing their assigned functions, to

prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reascnable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A signifidant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all|deficiencies in internal control that might be

material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies.
not identify any deficiencies in internal control t
However, material weaknesses may exist that have

iven these limitations, during our audit we did
at we consider to be material weaknesses.
not been identified.

\N, LLC ==+
+ t

Rice Sullivan, LLC Certified

Locations: Swansea, IL | Altam

Public Accountants
ont, IL| Ellisville, MO
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasenable assurance about whether the Village of Swansea’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provigions was not an objective of our audit and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other ratters that are required to be reported under Gevernment Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the gcope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not te grovide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This repo is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rice Suwr vad, LLC

Swansea, lllinois
September 3, 2014
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VILLAGE OF S

WANSEA

SWANSEA, 11

LINOIS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDE

sION AND ANALYSIS
D APRIL 30,2014

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT - Brief Discussion

of the Financial Statements

The annual report consists of a series of financial statemients which provide information about the Village

of Swansea (Village), its funds and its fiduciary respons
three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds
and the Statement of Activities convey information abo
notes and supplemental information are included wi
statements. Finally, the annual report contains an Indej
the auditing firm’s opinion on whether or not the Basi
Financial Statements are fairly stated. Additionally, thg
the Village’s accounting and records keeping processes.

USING THE MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & AN

bilities. The Village’s funds can be divided into
ind fiduciary funds. The Statement of Net Assets
ut the activities of the Village as a whole. Also,
thin the annual report to clarify the financial
pendent Auditor’s Report. The auditor expresses
¢ Financial Statements and the Combined Fund
> auditor provides any findings of weaknesses in

ALYSIS

The Annual Financial Report Management Discussion 4
year’s basic financial statements, is designed to (1)
activities for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2014, (2) as

k Analysis (MD & A), which is compared to last
provide an overview of the Village's financial
sist the reader in understanding significant issues,

(3) identify any material deviations from the financial plan or the approved budget, (4) identify individual

fund issues or concerns, and (5) identify changes in the
next.

Since the MD & A is designed to focus on the curre
should be read in conjunction with the Village’s financi

Village’s financial position from one year to the

t year’s activities and currently known facts, it
statements.

As further described in Note 1, the Village implemented the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 65, “Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities,” for the year ended

April 30, 2014. As a result, certain comparative info
restated. In addition, certain amounts in the financial
purposes to conform with the presentation in the current

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets and deferred outflows of resources o
inflows of resources by $46,133,599. Net positi
capital assets, $3,455,847 restricted for specific p
The Village’s total net position increased by $1,
increased by $1,210,175 while net position of bu
The Village’s combined governmental funds end
2014. Of this amount, $1,862,571 is unassigned
Fund expenditures.

ation for the year ended April 30, 2013 has been
atements have been reclassified for comparative
year financial statements.

[ the Village exceeded its liabilities and deferred
bn is comprised of $32,404,212 net investment in
urposes and $10,273,540 is unrestricted.

008,713. Net position of governmental activities
siness-type activities decreased by $201,462.

Jing fund balance was $6,048,714 as of April 30,
which represents approximately 36% of General
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VILLAGE OF S

WANSEA

SWANSEA, 1L

LINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMEN

'S

The Village’s annual report includes two government-w
Village’s net position or the difference between assets ¢
and deferred inflows of resources. This is one of the to
or financial position. The Statement of Net Position
statements that report both long-term and short-term inf
its activities.

The Statement of Net Position is a government-w
information that includes all of the Village’s assets, defg
with the difference reported as total net position. Over t|
an indicator as to whether the financial position is impn
economic health of the Village would extend to other n|
taxpayer base or the condition of Village infrastructure i
this report.

The second government-wide statement is the Statement
position changed during the current fiscal year. All g
regardless of when cash is received or paid. An impqg
Activities is to show the financial reliance of the Villz
provided by the Village’s taxpayers.

Both government-wide financial statements distinguish
primarily supported by locally generated taxes and inter
business-type activities that are intended to recover all g
fees and charges. Governmental activities include lef
building safety and street and park maintenance. The Vi
and treatment. Fiduciary activities include employd
government-wide statements since these assets are not ay

INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS

The Village depreciates infrastructure assets over thg
considered a recurring cost that does not extend the road
as repainting a crosswalk, the cost of the project will
“reconstruction” of a road will generally be capitalized.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain contrd
or objectives. The Village uses funds to ensure and dg
and regulations. Within the basic financial statements,
most significant funds rather than the Village as a who
others are combined into a single, aggregated presentatid

purposes.

ide financial statements, both of which report the
ind deferred outflows of resources and liabilities
bls used to measure the Village’s financial health
ind the Statement of Activities are two financial
ormation about the Village as a whole and about

de statement of financial position presenting
rred outflows/inflows of resources and liabilities,
ime, increases or decreases in the net position are
oving or deteriorating. Evaluation of the overall
pn-financial factors such as diversification of the
1 addition to the financial information provided in

of Activities which reports how the Village’s net
urrent year revenues and expenses are included
irtant purpose of the design of the Statement of
1ge’s distinet activities or functions on revenues

governmental activities of the Village that are
governmental revenues, such as grants, and from
r a significant portion of their costs through user
bislative and executive functions, public safety,
llage’s business-type activity is sewage collection
¢ pension plans that are not included in the
railable to fund Village programs.

pir estimated useful life. If a road project is
’s original useful life or expand its capacity, such
be expensed. The “resurfacing” of a road and

I over resources segregated for specific activities
emonstrate compliance with finance related laws
fund financial statements focus on the Village’s
¢. Major funds are separately reported while all
n. All funds were considered major for reporting
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VILLAGE OF SWANSEA
SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes
begin immediately following the basic financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the Village’s progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension benefits to its employees. Other supplementary information includes detail by fund for
receivables, payables, transfers, and payments within the reporting entity. Supplementary information
follows the notes to the financial statements.

Major funds are reported in the basic financial statements as discussed. Combining and individual
statements and schedules for special revenue funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds are presented in
a subsequent section of this report.

ANALYSIS OF VILLAGE-WIDE ACTIVITY

The Statement of Net Position presents all of the Villagel's non-fiduciary assets, deferred outflows/inflows
of resources and liabilities, with the difference reported as “net position.” The following table provides a
condensed Statement of Net Position as of April 30, 2014 and 2013.

Table 1
Net Position (In Thousands)
Business-Type Total Primary
Governmental Activities Activities Government
2013 2013 2013
2014 (restated) 2014 (restated) 2014 (restated)
Assets
Current and Cther Assets $ 7,280 % 6,194 $ 3844 % 9,168 $ 16,133 § 15362
Capital Assets 25,479 24,978 28,004 29,072 53,483 54,050
32,768 31,172 36,848 38,240 69,616 69,412
Deferred Qutflows of Resources 80 88 - - 80 88
Liabilities
Other Liabilities 328 239 315 276 643 515
Long-Term Liabilities 3,223 3,329 18,967 20,197 22,190 23,526
3,551 3,568 19,282 20,473 22,833 24,041
Deferred Inflows of Resources 729 334 - - 729 334
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 23,354 22,678 9,051 8,886 32,405 31,564
Restricted 3,456 3,169 - - 3,456 3,169
Unrestricted 1,758 1,511 8,515 8,881 10,273 10,392
Total Net Position $ 28568 $§ 27358 $ 17566 $ 17,767 $ 46,134 § 45125
Page 8
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VILLAGE OF S

WANSEA

SWANSEA, I1|

LINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

By far, the largest portion of the Village’s net position (]
land, infrastructure, buildings and equipment), less any
assets. The Village uses capital assets to provide servig
available for future spending. Although the Village’s
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needsg
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be usq

The Village’s unrestricted net position for Governmental
used to fund day-to-day operations, is $1,758,216, comyp
of 16.4%.

The Business-Type activities of the Village reflect asse|
operated by the Village. The Village provides sewer ser
certain portions of St. Clair Township. This business-ty
the cost of operation, including depreciation. The V|
business-type activities in order to maintain stability
Business-Type Activities was $17,565,861 compared to
unrestricted net position of $8,515,324 compared to
improvement of its sewer system. Types of maintenany
maintenance of pumps, filtering equipment and related

70%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.:
v related outstanding debt used to acquire those
pes to citizens; consequently, these assets are not
investments In capital assets is reported net of
d to repay this debt must be provided from other
rd to liquidate these liabilities.

Activities, the part of the net position that can be
ared to $1,510,832 last year which is an increase

ts of the sewage collection and treatment system
vices to Swansea residents and businesses, and to
pe activity is funded by a fee for service to cover
illage strives to control operating expenses for
in charges for services. The net position of
$17,767,323 last year. The Village has available
$8.881,148 last year, for the maintenance and
e work for the sewer system include the routine
machinery within the plant and sewage pumps at

six pumping stations within the Village, and the cleganing, relining and replacement of sewer pipes

throughout the Village determined to be in need of repla

The Statement of Activities highlights the Village’s reve
Activities and Business-type Activities. The Governme
services, including police protection, fire protection, h
services, general administration, public safety employ
government-type activities. Governmental Activities g
through various taxes such as property, income, sales, m,

cement due to their age and condition.

nues and expenditures as related to Governmental
ntal Activities section reflects the Village’s basic
uilding safety, street maintenance, parks, senior
ee pensions, tax increment financing and other
f the Village of Swansea are primarily financed
ptor fuel and others.
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VILLAGE OF S

WANSEA

SWANSEA, 11

LINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Table 2 shows the changes in net position for the year en

Rewenues
Program Revenues:
Fees and Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenue:
Property Taxes
Income Taxes
Sales Taxes
Motor Fuel Tax
Utility Tax
Franchise and Other Taxes
Other
Total Revenue

Expenses

Govemnmental Activities:
General Administration
Planning and Zoning
Police Protection
Police Pension
Fire Protection
Fire Pension
Streets
Park
Senior Services
Audit
Workmen's Comp and Liability Insurance
Motor Fuel Tax
Special Business District
TaxIncrement Financing
Infrastructure Depreciation Expense
Debt Service Interest and Service Charges

Business-Type Activities
Sewerage

Total Expenses

Transfers

Change in Net Position
Beginning Net Position

ded April 30, 2014 and 2013.

Table 2
Changes in Net Position (In{Thousands)
Governmegntal Business-Type Total Primary
Activitigs Activities Government
2013 2013 2013
2014 (res tated) 2014 (restated) 2014 (restated)
$ 1,017 § 916 $ 2445 $ 2529 $ 3462 $ 3445
31 129 - - 31 129
669 - - - 669 -
980 979 - - 980 979
1,283 1,271 - - 1,283 1,271
2,112 2,128 - - 2,112 2,128
446 383 - - 446 383
809 789 - - 809 789
422 426 - - 422 426
319 188 34 29 353 217
8,088 7,209 2,479 2,558 10,567 9,767
721 823 - - 721 823
222 143 - - 222 143
2,493 2,631 - - 2,493 2,631
887 1,058 - - 887 1,058
389 379 - - 389 379
56 53 - - 56 53
730 666 - - 730 666
161 181 - - 161 181
- 1 - - - 1
29 34 - - 29 34
160 141 - - 160 141
260 302 - - 260 302
13 22 - - 13 22
31 22 - - 31 22
670 672 - - 670 672
56 107 - - 56 107
- - 2,680 2,682 2,680 2,682
6,878 7,235 2,680 2,682 9,558 9,917
- 25 - (25) - -
1,210 ) (201) (149) 1,009 (150)
27,358 27,359 17,767 17,916 45,125 45,275
$ 28,568 § 27,358 $ 17,566 $ 17,767 $ 46,134 § 45,125

Ending Net Position
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VILLAGE OF S

WANSEA

SWANSEA, 1L

LINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ANALYSIS OF INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

The Village’s governmental funds total ending fund balance for FY 2014 was $6,048,714 compared to

$5,400,389 during FY 2013. The Village’s activities a
Motor Fuel Fund, Special Business District Fund, Ta
Capital Projects. These major governmental funds do no

The following table reflects the fund balance as of April

Table 3: Change in Governmj

re organized into the following funds: General,
x Increment Financing Fund, Debt Service and
t reflect capital assets or debt.

30, 2014 and 2013 with respect to each fund.

ental Fund Balances

Fund Balance
Fund Balance April 30,2013 Increase

Fund April 30,201 (restated) (Decrease)
General $ 2,060,108 $ 1,704,780 p 355,328
Motor Fuel 426,007 361,471 64,536
Special Business District 1,445,668 1,181,134 264,534
Tax Increment Financing 1,479,425 1,547,086 (67,661)
Debt Service 118,173 36,817 81,356
Capital Projects 519,333 569,101 (49,768)

Total $ 6,048,714 $ 5,400,389 3 648,325

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Village.

The Proprietary Fund reflects assets and liabilities assg
Village of Swansea. The total current assets are $7,316,
assets are $36,847,999 compared to last year’s $38,239,
compared to $1,218,625 in FY 2013. FY 2014 total lo
payable, are $17,989,562. Last year’s total long-term |
$19,282,138, compared to last year’s total of $20,47
includes $8,515,324 in unrestricted funds. This compat
which includes $8,881,148 in unrestricted funds.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

As required by state statute, the Village of Swansea Bqg
government and business type activities prior to the beg
administration prepares the budget for the fiscal year. TI
Board of Trustees, and a public hearing is conducted
statute (65 ILCS 5/8-2-9.9). The budget is legally enag
Trustees. The budget can be amended from time to timyg
voting members is necessary to enact an ordinance to 1
budget amendments enacted in FY 2014.

pciated with the sewer services provided by the
326, compared to $7,342,080 last year. The total
898. The total current liabilities are $1,292,576,
ng-term liabilities, which are comprised of loans
iabilities were $19,253,950. Total liabilities are
2,575. Net position totals $17,565,861, which
es to net position last year totaling $17,767,323,

ard of Trustees adopts a budget annually for all
inning of the fiscal year on May 1. The Village
ne proposed budget is reviewed at meetings of the
to obtain citizen input in accordance with state
ted by approval of an ordinance by the Board of
= by action of the Board. A 2/3rd majority of the
nake amendments to the budget. There were no
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VILLAGE OF S

WANSEA

SWANSEA. 1

LINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

General fund revenue results were $275,146 over the
fund expenditures were $37,142 over the budget projec
early distributions of the 2013 property taxes which ar¢
not anticipating its first distribution until July 2014.

In FY 2014, the number of authorized staff positions, 1
was 45 positions. This number was the same as the prev

CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental Activities capital assets consist of faciliti
Center, Street Department garage and fire stations.

Governmental Activities capital assets amounted to $23
The Village’s capital assets in Business-Type Activities
were valued on April 30, 2014 at $28,003,592, co
information of the Village’s capital assets can be found i

DEBT OUTSTANDING

The Village has debt in both Governmental Activities ag
Activities, payments are being made on schedule on th
Fire Station No. 2, located at 144 Huntwood Road. Th
which is levied exclusively for debt repayment on an
County. Payments (including principal and interest)
fire station was constructed in 2004. Interest rates va
bond. The final payment will be made in 2024. The
police cars and tax increment financing debt.

pudget projection of $5,204,550. Actual general
tion of $5,087,226. Variances are mainly due to
collected by St. Clair County. The Village was

ot including paid on-call (volunteer) firefighters,
jous fiscal year.

ts such as streets, parks, the Village Government
As of April 30, 2014, the Village’s value in
,478,958, compared to $24,978,389 in FY 2013.
L the Village’s sewer system and treatment plant,
mpared to $29.072,098 last year. Additional
n Note 5.

nd in Business Type Activities. In Governmental
. $3.000,000 bond issued for the construction of
e source of funds for repayment is a property tax
val basis on the Village’s behalf by St. Clair
ount to approximately $235,000 annually. The
between 2.0% and 2.5% through the life of the
emaining debt consists of loans for purchases of

In Business-Type Activities, debt consists of a loan frgm the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency
Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund for the [$21,156,246 received for the expansion and
improvement of the sewage treatment plant that was corhipleted in fiscal year 2011. The loan repayments
began in May 2011. A principal payment of $1,201,915 was made during FY 2014. Final payment will
be made in May 2030. The Western Avenue Lift Station was completed in FY 2013 and loan repayments
began in March 2013. The total principal amount of the| loan was $673,139 and the balance remaining as
of April 30, 2014 was $628,403. Final payment will be made in April 2032.

n increase in rates was enacted by the Board of
The Debt Service Charge was increased from
was increased from $1.60 to $2.48 per 100 cubic

To accommodate costs associated with the expansion,
Trustees on August 18, 2008 (Ordinance No. 1530).
$18.00 to $24.00 bi-monthly and the Basic User Charge
feet of water consumption.

Additional information on the Village’s debt can be found in Note 6.
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VILLAGE OF SWANSEA
SWANSEA, I1ILINOIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ECONOMIC FACTORS & NEXT YEAR’S BUDGE[T

Sales tax, the Village’s share of the state income tax and property tax represent the largest sources of
revenue for the General Fund. Tax revenue has remained flat over the last 5 years.

Property tax revenue growth is expected to remain modest due to the continuing national economic slump
in new home and commercial construction. In FY 2014,/ 26 permits were issued for construction of single
family residences with a total estimated value of $7,766,645. In FY 2013, 42 building permits for single
family homes were issued. No new permits for new commercial construction were issued in FY 2014 or
FY 2013. The estimated value for all construction within the Village, including additions and building
modifications, during FY 2014 totaled $9,754,201. In the previous fiscal vear, the total estimated value
for all construction within the Village amounted to $12,882,590.

The Village is working to improve communication systems. In FY 2015, the Village plans to update its
website and phone systems.

The Village administration has continually sought |grants of federal and state funds for street
improvements and park improvements. In FY 2014 thg Village completed the work on phase 2 of the
Richland Creek bike trail. This was accomplished through a grant from the Illinois Department of
Transportation.

In 2003 the residents passed a %2 cent sales tax to improve our roads. In FY 2015 the Village will be
using those funds to resurface 4 roads and purchase another dump truck with a plow and spreader. In
addition, the Village will be resurfacing roads, repajring infrastructure and purchasing new sewer
equipment

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

The financial report is designed to provide readers with an overview of the finances of the Village of
Swansea and comply with finance related laws and regylations. The Board of Trustees of the Village of
Swansea is committed to full accountability. For quéstions about this report, or to request additional
information, contact the President of the Board of Trugtees or the Village Administrator at 1400 North
Illinois Street; Swansea, IL. 62226; 618-234-0044; or e-thail swanadmn@swanseail.org.
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VILLAGE OF S

WANSEA

SWANSEA, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
APRIL 30,2014
Primary Government
vernmental Business-Type
ASSETS Activities Activities Total
Cash and cash equivalents 5297684 § 6,249,244 11,546,928
Investments - 2,131,440 2.131.440
Property tax receivable 1,676,696 - 1,676,696
Accounts receivable - other 117,513 - 117,513
Accounts receivable - trade (net) - 420,882 420,882
Interest receivable - 2,653 2,653
Prepaid insurance 92,790 40,188 132,978
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 104,746 - 104,746
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 1,270,259 30,000 1,300,259
Depreciable, net 24,208,699 27,973,592 52,182,291
Total Assets 32,768,387 36,847,999 69,616,386
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding 79,547 - 79,547
LIABILITIES
Accounts pay able 203,556 99,713 303,269
Accrued interest pay able 19,371 209,175 228,546
Accrued wages and payroll taxes 105,340 5,720 111,060
Long-term liabilities
Due within one y ear 262,390 977,968 1,240,358
Due in more than one year 2,960,707 17,989,562 20,950,269
Total Liabilities 3,551,364 19,282,138 22,833,502
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 728,832 - 728,832
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 23,353,675 9,050,537 32,404,212
Restricted for:
Police protection 430 - 430
Fire protection 104,317 - 104,317
M otor fuel tax 426,007 - 426,007
Special business district 1,445,668 - 1,445,668
Tax increment financing 1,479,425 - 1,479,425
Unrestricted 1,758,216 8,515,324 10,273,540
Total Net Position 28,567,738 § 17,565,861 46,133,599
See Notes to Basic Financial Statements Page 14
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VILLAGE OF S

WANSEA

SWANSEA, IL;

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE Sk
TO THE STATEMENT (
APRIL 30,

LINOIS

2014

IEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
)'F NET POSITION

Total Fund Balances for Governmental Funds

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the

Statement of Net Assets is different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are 1
financial resources and therefore are not repor
governmental funds. The cost of the assets is §
and the accumulated depreciation is $17,497,9

Earned income taxes not collected within 60 days
end are deferred within the find financial state
However, revenue for this amount is recognize
government-wide statements.

Income Taxes

Net pension assets {(obligation) do not require the
financial resources and therefore are not repor]
(expenses) in the governmental funds.

Some liabilities reported in the Statement of Activitie
require the use of current financial resources and
therefore are not reported as liabilities in governm
funds. These activities consist of:

Lease/purchase agreements

Notes payable

Bonds payable

Other post employment benefit obligation
Unamortized bond (premium) discount
Unamortized deferred amount on refunding
Accrued interest

Accrued compensated absences

Total Net Position of Govermmental Activities

hot

ted n the
542,976,832
874,

of year
ments.
d in the

use of current
ted as revenue

5 do not

ental

$ 6,048,714

25,478,958

202,987

(437,693)

(25,283)
(40,241)
(2,100,000)
(413,669)
(33.427)
79,547

(19,371)
(172,784)

$ 28,567,738

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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VILLAGE OF SWANSEA
—— e e 2 MWIIYY LA VIR
SWANSEA, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES + GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014
Major Governmental Funds
Special Tax
Mo tojr Business Increment Debt Capital
REVENUES General Fue District Financing Service P ro jects Total
Property taxes $ 178,278 - % - 3 451112 $ 239016 $ - $ 868406
Township road and bridge tax 11L880 - - - - - 114,880
Licenses and permits 62,635 - - - - - 62,635
Utility tax 809015 - - - - - 809,015
Intergo vernmental 2811899 446441 273,901 - - 345933 3,882,174
Fines 38,964 - - - - - 38964
Foreign fire tax 25234 - - - - - 25234
Franchise fees 381899 - - - - - 381899
Interestincome 3,868 56 3,499 4378 438 1306 H.445
Administrative fee 75,396 - - - - - 75,396
Miscellaneous 123,664 4163 - - - 3213 131,040
Rental 44,397 - - - - - 44,397
Donations 10,181 - - - - - 10,181
Grants 12,500 - - - - 448 206 460,706
Taxes to police pension 739,600 - - - - - 739,600
Taxes to foefighters pension 50,286 - - - - - 50,286
Total Revenues 5479.696 4513560 277400 455,490 239,454 802,658 7,706 258
EXPENDITURES
General administration 581486 - - - 22 - 581508
Planning and zoning 222407 - - - - - 222,407
Police protection 2,393,799 - - - - - 2,393,799
Police pension 739,600 - - - - - 739,600
Fire protection 226,224 - - - - - 226,224
Fire pension 50286 - - - - - 50,286
Streets 583,908 - - - - - 583,908
Park 60,476 - - - - - 60,476
Seniprservices 75 - - - - - 75
Audit 28.809 - - - - - 28,809
Workmen's compensation and
liability insurance 159,969 - - - - - 159,969
Motor fueltax - 243,386 - - - - 243,586
Tax increment financing - - - 30,186 - - 30,186
Capitaloutlay 77,329 143438 12,866 481815 - 797295 1,512,743
Pebtservice
Lease and note payments - - - 8,649 - 22,048 30,697
Bond principal retired - - - - 180,000 - 180,000
Interestand service charge - - - 2501 34 830 3,504 40,835
Total Expenditures 5,124,368 387 024 12,866 523,151 214,852 822847 7,085,108
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 355,328 64,336 264,534 (67.661) 24,602 (20.189) 621150
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers from other funds - - - - 56,754 B 56,754
Transfers to otherfunds - - - - - (56,754) (56,754)
Lease/purchase proceeds - - - - - 27,175 27,175
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - - - 56,754 (29,579) 27,175
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures
and OtherFinancing Uses 355,328 64,336 264,534 (67,661) BL356 (49,768) 648,325
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year, Restated 1704.780 361471 1,181,134 1,547,086 36,817 569,101 5400389
Fund Balances - End of Year $ 2,060,108 426007 $ 1445668 $ 1479425 % 18,173  § 519333 $ 6,048,714

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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VILLAGE OF SWANSEA
SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT QF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT (OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014

Change in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds $ 648,325

The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in
the Statement of Activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital cutlays as expenditures
while governmental activities report depreciation expense
to allocate those expenditures over the Jife of the asset.
Donated assets are not recorded in the government funds but
are recognized as revenue in the Statement of Activities:

Capital asset purchases 272,154
Additions to construction in progress 1,151,303
Donated capital assets 238.425
Depreciation expense (1,161,275) 500,607

In the statement of activities, the loss on the disposition of capjital
assets is reported. The fund financial statements recognize
only the proceeds from the sale of those assets. (38)

The governmental funds report debt proceeds and capital lease proceeds
as an other financing source, while repayment of principal is reported
as an expenditures. In the Statement of Net Position, howgver, issuing
debt and capital leases increases long-term liabilities and dogs not affect
the Statement of Activities. Similarly, repayment of principal is an
expenditure in the governmental funds financial statements{but
reduces the long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Pogition.
During the year, one of the Village's TIF District debt expirgd and is no
longer payable by the Village. This reduces the long-term liabilities
but has no effect on the fund financial statements.

Repayment of bonds, notes and leases principal 210,697
Expiration of TIF debt 169,382
Proceeds from lease/purchase agreement (27,175)

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in governmental funds
the effect of discounts and premiums when debt is first issugd
is reported in the operating statement, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities.

Interest is recognized as an expenditure in the governmental funds
when it is due. Inthe Statement of Activities, interest expgnse is
recognized as it accrues, regardless of when it is due. Some ¢xpenses
reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the uge of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported ag
expenditures in governmental funds. The net effect of these
differences are as follows:

Deferred amount on refinding, net of amortization (8.839)
Premium on debt issuance, net of amortization 3,715

Increase in compensated absences (11,803)
Increase in accrued interest obligations (9,714)
Increase in other post employment benefit obligation (85,153)
Increase in net pension obligation (asset) (153,671)

Income tax revenues and grant revenues earned by the Village bjt
not collected within 60 days of year end are reported as defprred
inflows of resources in the governmental funds. They are,
however, recorded as revenues in the statement of activities. (26,158)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 1,210,175

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements Page 19




VILLAGE OF S

WANSEA

SWANSEA, IL

LINOIS

STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITI{
APRIL 30,

DN — PROPRIETARY FUNDS
2014

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable - trade (net)
Interest receivable
Prepaid insurance

Total Current Assets

Capital Assets
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Accrued wages and payroll taxes
Vacation payable
Current portion of loans payable
Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Loans payable
Total Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Sewerage

$ 6,249,244
2,131,440
420,882
2,653
40,188

8,844,407

30,000

27,973,592

36,847,999

99,713
209,175
5,720
14,475
963,493

1,292,576

17,989,562

17,989,562

19,282,138

9,050,537
8,515,324

$ 17,565,861

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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VILLAGE OF S

WANSEA

SWANSEA, IL

LINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EX|
FUND NET POSITION - PR
FOR THE YEAR ENDE

PENSES AND CHANGES IN
OPRIETARY FUNDS
D APRIL 30, 2014

Operating Revenues
Charges for services
Tap-in and inspection fees

Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Personnel services
Contractual services
Commodities
Depreciation expense
Administrative fee/General Fund
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income
Interest expense
(Loss) on disposal of capital assets
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expense
Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning of Year, Restated

Net Position - End of Year

Sewerage

$ 2,432,363
13,050

2,445,413

260,643
653,166
46,459
1,167,315
75,396

2,202,979

242,434

33,136
(477,013)
(19

(443,396)

(201,462)

17,767,323

$ 17,565,861

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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VILLAGE OF SWANSEA

SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments for employees services
Cash payments for goods and services

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers among funds (net)

Cash Flows From Capital And Related Financing Activities

Acquisition of plant assets
Principal debt payments
Interest paid

Net Cash Used In Capital And Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Proceeds from maturity of mvestments
Acquisition of investments
Receipts of investment income

Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities
Net Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

Sewerage

$ 2,428,119
(256,960)
(736,046)

1,435,113

(98.828)
(1,232.869)
(490,708)

(1,822,405)

1,825,720
(1,528.,081)
30,483

328,122

(59.170)

6,308,414

$ 6,249,244

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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VILLAGE OF S

WANSEA

SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDE

D APRIL 30, 2014

Reconciliation Of Operating Income To Net Cash

Provided By Operating Activities:
Operating Income

Adjustments To Reconcile Operating Income
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activitie

Depreciation
Changes In Assets And Liabilities
Increase in accounts recetvables
Increase in prepaid insurance
Increase in accounts payable
Increase in accrued liabilities
Increase in vacation payable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

To

7]

Sewerage

$

242,434

1,167,315

(17,294)
(13,469)
52,307

721
3,099

1,192,679

$

1,435,113

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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VILLAGE OF SWANSEA
SWANSEA, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUNDS
APRIL 30,2014
Pension
Trust
Funds
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 858,347
Investments, at fair value
Certificates of deposit 753,601
Managed mutual funds 3,587,333
Government bonds 1,614,343
Corporate bonds 1,568,319
Municipal bonds 95,195
Property tax receivable 805,640
Interest receivable 27,181
Other 10,069
Total Assets 9,320,028
LIABILITIES
Unremitted payroll taxes 3,893
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 667,712
NET POSITION
Net position - restricted for
pension benefits 8,648,423
Total Net Position $ 8.648,423
See Notes to Basic Financial Statements Page 24




VILLAGE OF SWANSEA
SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY|NET POSITION — FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014

Pension
Trust
Funds
Additions
Contributions
Employer (from General Fund) $ 747,305
Employees 157,230
Total Contributions 904,535
Investment Income
Net appreciation in fair value of investments 35,362
Interest and dividends 183,971
Realized gain on sale of investments 274,770
Less: Investment expense 52,287
Net Investment Income 441,816
Total Additions 1,346,351
Deductions
Retirement benefits 469,189
Administrative expenses 10,361
Total Deductions 479,550
Change in Net Position 866.801
Net Position - Beginning of Year 7,781,622
Net Position - End of Year $ 8,648,423

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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VILLAGE OF §

WANSEA

SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APRIL 30,

2014

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

A. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to desgribe “which” transactions are recorded within the
various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded

regardless of the measurement focus appligd.

Government-Wide, Proprietary Fund and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide, proprietary fund apd fiduciary fund financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned and| expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flow takes place. Nonexchange transactions, in
which the Village of Swansea (Village) gives (or receives) value without directly receiving
(or giving) equal value in exchange, include taxes, grants, entitlements and donations.
Revenue from grants, entitlements and simjilar items are recognized in the fiscal year in which

all eligibility requirements imposed by the

Govermmental Fund Financial Statements

provider have been met.

Governmental funds are reported using the{ current financial resources measurement focus and

the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both

measurable and available. Revenues are donsidered to be available when they are collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For
this purpose, the Village considers revenyies to be available if they are collected within 60

days of the end of the current fiscal year.

Expenditures generally are recorded when the

liability is incurred, as under accrual accopinting. However, principal and interest on general
long-term debt are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are

reported as expenditures in governmenta

| funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and

acquisitions under capital leases are report¢d as other financing sources.

Significant revenue sources which are susgeptible to accrual include individual and corporate
income taxes, sales taxes, public utility taxes, motor fuel taxes and interest. All other revenue

sources including fines, penalties, licenses

and other miscellaneous revenues are considered to

be measurable and available only when cash is received.

B. Financial Reporting Entity

The Village is a local government established under the provisions of Illinois statutes.
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Compoenent Units

The Village has developed criteria to dg
which benefit the citizens of the Village

within its financial statements as compone
whether the Village exercises
interdependency, selection of governing
significantly influence operations, and af

service, and special financing relationships|

The Village has determined that no other
criteria and, therefore, no other agency or
unit in the Village’s financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and the St
primary government (the Village). Thess
overall government, except for fiduciary ai
governmental and business-type activities
are financed through taxes, intergovernmd
Business-type activities are financed in whj

The Statement of Net Position presents
liabilities, with the difference reported as nj

The Statement of Activities presents a @
revenues for the different business-type ad
Village’s governmental activities. Direct
with a program or function and, therefor
Program revenues include (a) charges pai

overs

itermine whether outside agencies with activities
, including joint agreements, should be included
nt units. The criteria includes, but is not limited to,
ight responsibility (which includes financial
authority, designation of management, ability to
ccountability for fiscal matters), scope of public

putside agency or joint agreement meets the above
joint agreement has been included as a component

ttement of Activities display information about the
e statements include the financial activities of the
ctivities. These statements distinguish between the
of the Village. Governmental activities generally
ntal revenues and other nonexchange transactions.
ple or in part by fees charged to external parties.

the reporting entity’s non-fiduciary assets and
et position.

omparison between direct expenses and program
tivities of the Village and for each function of the
expenses are those that are specifically associated
e, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.
l by the recipients of goods or services offered by

the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or

capital requirements of a particular progr
revenues, including all taxes, are presented

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide inj
fiduciary funds. Separate statements for ¢
fiduciary — are presented. The emph
governmental and enterprise funds, each
governmental and enterprise funds are agg

am. Revenues that are not classified as program
as general revenues.

formation about the Village’s funds, including its
ach fund category - governmental, proprietary, and
asis on fund financial statements is on major
displayed in a separate column. All remaining
regated and reported as nonmajor funds.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Proprietary fund operating revenues, suc

exchange transactions associated with

transactions are those in which each part

Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidie

nonexchange transactions or ancillary activ

The Village’s proprietary funds distinguish
expenses. Operating revenues and expens

for services (including tap-in fees) and
depreciation and excluding interest cost.
nonoperating.

The Village reports the following major go

General — This is the Village’s pri
resources of the general governmel
another fund. These services includg

fire protection, streets, park and seniq

Special Revenue — These funds acg
sources that are legally restricted
revenues funds account for, among
distributions and other resources rest
Fuel Fund, Special Business District

Debt Service — These funds acd
accumulated to pay interest and prin
leases, workers® compensation and uj

Capital Projects — These funds 4
acquisition or construction of majq

principally from proceeds of bond iss

The Village reports the following major pr

h as charges for services, generally result from
the principal activity of the fund. Exchange
y receives and gives up essentially equal values.
5 and investment earnings, generally result from
ities.

| between operating and nonoperating revenues and
es of the Village’s sewer funds consist of charges
the costs of providing those services, including
All other revenues and expenses are reported as

wvernmental funds:

mary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
nt, except those required to be accounted for in
e, among others, general administration, police and
I services.

ount for resources obtained from specific revenue
to expenditures for specified purposes. Special
other things, taxes levied with statutorily defined
ricted as to purpose. The funds include the Motor
and Tax Increment Financing Fund.

ount for governmental resources obtained and
cipal on general long-term debt (other than capital
nfunded retirement costs).

ccount for resources obtained and used for the
or capital facilities. Such resources are derived

ues and non-home rule sales tax.

pprietary funds:

Enterprise (Sewerage) Fund — Enterprise funds are used to account for business-like

activities provided to the general pul
charges and the measurement of fin
similar to the private sector. This
Village’s water utilities services.

Additionally, the Village reports the follow
Pension Trust — These funds accouj

for the members and beneficiaries ¢
Police Pension Fund and the Firefigh

lic. These activities are financed primarily by user
incial activity focuses on net income measurement
fund accounts for the operating activities of the

iing fiduciary fund types:
nt for resources that are required to be held in trust

of the Village’s two pension plans, which are the
ters’ Pension Fund.
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D.

Assets and Liabilities

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist principally of bank accounts and are stated at cost. The
categorization of deposits is revealed in Nate 4.

Investments

Investments, other than those in pension funds, consist of certificate of deposits, and are stated

at cost, which approximates market. Invj
value. Generally, the Village’s pension sy
prices listed on national securities exchang
of April 30.

Investment income is recorded as reven
retirement systems and certain other indi
separately invested and specifically credi
losses on sale of investments are recognize

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Dj

estments in the pension plans are reported at fair
bstems” marketable securities are valued at closing
es and quotes from independent pricing services as

e in the General Fund, except for resources of
vidual funds that are statutorily authorized to be
ted with the income realized thereon. Gains or
d upon realization.

oubtful Accounts

Governmental activities accounts receival
yet received by the Village. These include
motor fuel taxes.

Business-type activities accounts receival
payable May 2014 and unbilled amount
Charges for the period, including the date
based upon the May 2014 billing and inclyj
receivable as of April 30, 2014 were consi

Accounts receivable are considered to be g
the end of the month in which the services
receivable are written off when all efforts

is clear that such amounts will not be colle

An allowance for doubtful accounts has nd
the direct write-off method for accounts de

Capital Assets

The accounting treatment over property,

le consists of taxes collected at the state level, not
sales, auto rental, franchise, local use, telecom and

ble reflect unpaid balances from the last billing,
s for services before the end of the fiscal year.
of the last meter reading to April 30, are accrued
ded in accounts receivable. Certain of the accounts
lered to be delinquent or past due.

lelinquent or past due if payment is not received by
are provided. Any delinquent or past due accounts
lo collect such amounts have been exhausted and it
cted.

t been established as it is the Village's policy to use
emed to be uncollectible.

plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on

whether the assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund and whether

they are reported in the government-wide ¢

r fund financial statements.
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Government-Wide Statements

In the government-wide financial statemer
Statement of Net Position. All capital

historical cost if actual is unavailable, excg
their estimated fair value at the date of don

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital a
Statement of Activities, with accumulate
Position. Depreciation is provided over t}

its, capital assets are accounted for as assets in the
assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated
ept for donated capital assets which are recorded at
ation.

ssets is recorded as an allocated expense in the
d depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net
ne assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-

line method of depreciation. A capitalization threshold of $2,000 is used to report capital

assets. The range of estimated useful lives

Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildiny
Equipment
Sewer systems
Infrastructure

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital

by type of asset is as follows:

20—50 years
10--25 years
3-10 years
5—50 years
15-40 years

0

S

| assets acquired for use in governmental fund

operations are accounted for as capital oytlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon

acquisition. Capital assets acquired for ug
the same as in the government-wide stat
phase of capital assets of business-type act
the assets constructed.

Long-Term Debt

e in proprietary fund operations are accounted for
ements.  Interest incurred during the construction
jvities is included as part of the capitalized value of

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations

are reported as liabilities in the applical
reported net of the applicable bond premiuy

In the fund financial statements, governn
discounts during the current period. Thg

financing sources.

Equity Classification

The difference between fund assets plus
deferred inflows of resources is “Net
fiduciary fund financial statements, and
statements.

ble governmental activities. Bonds payable are

m or discount.

nental fund types recognized bond premiums and
b face amount of debt issued is reported as other

deferred outflows of resources and liabilities plus
Position” on government-wide, proprietary and
“Fund Balance” on governmental fund financial
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Government-Wide, Proprietary Fund and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Net position is reported in three categories

¢ Net investment in capital assets

- consists of capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes and other debt

that are attributed to the acquisiti

n, construction or improvement of those assets.

¢  Restricted net position - result when constraints placed on net position use are either

externally imposed by creditors,
law through enabling legislation.

grantors, contributors and the like, or imposed by

e  Unrestricted net position - consistp of net position, which does not meet the definition

of the two preceding categories.
indicate that management does
operations. They often have restri
removed or modified.

Governmental Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statem
the governmental fund balances:

Nonspendable — This consists of the g¢
form or legally or contractually re
nonspendable fund balance consists of]

Restricted — This consists of the gover
outside parties or by law through con

Unrestricted net position often is designated to
not consider them to be available for general
ctions that are imposed by management, but can be

ents the following classifications are used to define

vernmental fund balances that are not in spendable
juired to be maintained intact. The Village’s
prepaid items.

nmental fund balances that are legally restricted by
stitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The

Village’s restricted fund balances con:

ists of various taxes approved by voters for specific

purposes and amounts restricted due tq asset forfeiture.

Committed — This consists of the governmental fund balances that can only be used for
specific purposes pursuant to constrajnts imposed by formal action (resolution) of the
Board of Trustees, the Village’s highgst level of decision-making authority. The Village
does not have any committed fund balance as of April 30, 2014.

Assigned — This consists of governmg
specific purpose by a) Board of Try|
assigned fund balance includes debt s¢|

Unassigned — This consists of the goy
“nonspendable,” “restricted,” “commit

ntal fund balances that are intended to be used for
stees or b) Village Administrator. The Village’s
rvice and capital projects.

rernmental funds that do not meet the definition of
ted,” or “assigned.”
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Use of Restricted Resources

When an expense is incurred that can be §
(net position), the Village’s policy is to firg
then toward unrestricted resources. In gd
apply the expenditures toward restricted
classifications — committed and then assi
balances.

Compensated Absences

Vacation is earned at rates varying bety
employee classification and length of sery
vacation days earned in the previous year j
forfeited unless an emergency occurs. At
as follows:

Error! Not a valid link.
These amounts are recorded in the g
statements. A liability for these amoun
amounts due at year end have matured.

The Board of Trustees approved a revisi
1607 on April 8, 2011, which became ¢
enrolled in the Illinois Municipal Retirg

vaid using either restricted or unrestricted resources
it apply the expense toward restricted resources and
vernmental funds, the Village’s policy is to first
fund balance and then to other, less restrictive
gned fund balances before using unassigned fund

veen 80 and 168 hours per year, depending on
rice. An employee may carry up to the number of
past his or her anniversary date. Any excess time is
April 30, 2014, the liability for unused vacation is

ovemment-wide and proprietary fund financial
ts is reported in governmental funds only if the

pn to sick leave regulations by ordinance number
tffective on April 19, 2011. Employees who are
ment Fund (everyone except police officers and

firefighters) accumulates sick leave at four hours per month and can earn a maximum of

2,080 hours. Those employees hired prior
hours per month. There is no limit on sick|

Personal leave is accumulated at 2 days p
end or it is automatically forfeited.

Other Post Emplovment Benefit Obligatio

to this ordinance can accumulate sick leave at eight
leave accrual for police officers and firefighters.

er year. Personal leave is to be used by fiscal year

1!

The Village calculates and records a net of
the government-wide financial statement
difference between the actuarial required ¢
1, 2009, the date the Village implemented
elected not to retroactively implement
postretirement health care benefits providq
at Note 9.

ther post employment benefit obligation (OPEB) in
5. The net OPEB is, in general, the cumulative
sontribution and the actual contributions since May
GASB 45. The Village is not required to and has
GASB 45. Details relating to the Village’s
=d, OPEB liability, and its calculation are provided
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VILLAGE OF SWANSEA

SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

H.

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents are defined
convertible to cash with original maturities

as short-term, highly liquid investments readily
of three months or less.

The Village presents its statement of cash flows using the direct method.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements i
accepted in the United States of Ameri
assumptions that affect certain reported any
could differ from these estimates.

Interfund Transactions

The Village has the following types of inte

Services provided and used — sales and pu
price approximating their external exchanj
reported as revenues in seller funds and ex
amounts at year-end are reported as inter]
sheets or fund statements of net positions.

Reimbursements — repayments from the
expenses to the funds that initially paj
expenditures in the reimbursing fund and
fund.

Transfers — flows of assets (such as cash o

h conformity with accounting principles generally
ca requires management to make estimates and
rounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results

rfund transactions:

Irchases of goods and services between funds for a
be value. Interfund services provided and used are
penditures or expenses in purchaser funds. Unpaid
fund receivables and payables in the fund balance

funds responsible for particular expenditures or
id for them. Reimbursements are reported as
as a reduction of expenditures in the reimbursed

- goods) between funds without equivalent flows of

assets in return and without a requirement for repayment. In governmental funds, transfers

are reported as other financing uses in tl
sources in the funds receiving transfers.
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Nej
for deferred outflows of resources. Th

he funds making transfers and as other financing
In proprietary funds, transfers are reported after

t Position will sometimes report a separate section
s separate financial statement element, deferred

outflows of resources, represents a congumption of net position that applies to a future

period(s) and so will not be recognized
until then. The government only has one

hs an outflow of resources {(expense/expenditure)
item that qualifies for reporting in this category.

It is the deferred charge on refunding reported in the government-wide Statement of Net

Position. A deferred charge on refunding
of refunded debt and its reacquisition pr

y results from the difference in the carrying value
ice. This amount is deferred and amortized over

the shorter of the life of the refunded or re¢funding debt.
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LINOIS

In addition to liabilities, The Statement d
report a separate section for deferred
statement element, deferred inflows of 16
that applies to a future period(s) and so
(revenue) until that time. The governmg

sources: property taxes and income taxes.

an inflow of resources in the period that tl

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

For the year ended April 30, 2014, the Y
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabil
(a) properly classify certain items that w
deferred outflows of resources or defern
items that were previously reported as
(expenses or expenditures) or inflows
provides other financial reporting guidan
elements deferred outflows of resources 4
in the determination of the major fund

f Net Position and Balance Sheet will sometimes
inflows of resources. This separate financial
sources, represents an acquisition of net position
will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
tntal funds report unavailable revenues from two
These amounts are deferred and recognized as
he amounts become available.

Village adopted GASB Statement No. 65, “Items
ities”. The objective of this Statement is to either
pre previously reported as assets and liabilities as
ed inflows of resources or (b) recognize certain
assets and liabilities as outflows of resources
of resources (revenues). This Statement also
ce related to the impact of the financial statement
ind deferred inflows of resources such as changes
calculations and limiting the use of the term

deferred in financial statement presemtations. The accounting change was applied

retroactively. As a result, the net posit
restated as provided in Note 15.

PROPERTY TAXES

The Village’s property tax is levied each year on 3
before the last Tuesday in December. The 201
December 16, 2013. Property taxes attach as an ¢
payable in installments in July 2014 and Se;
distributions of tax receipts shortly after these

financial statements are generally from the 2012 ay

RESTRICTED NET POSITION

Governmental Activities

e As of April 30, 2014 the Village had §
expenditures, $104,317 that is restricted
restricted for motor fuel tax, $1,445,668

$1.479.425 that is restricted for tax increj

jon for the year ended April 30, 2013 has been

111 taxable real property located in the Village on or
3 levy was passed by the Board of Trustees on
nforceable lien on property as of January 1 and are
ptember 2014. The Village receives significant
two installment dates. Taxes recorded in these
nd prior tax levies.

430 that is restricted for future drug enforcement
| for fire protection expenditures, $426,007 that is
that is restricted for the special business district and
ment financing.
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Noftes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)
4, DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Governmental Activities and Business-Type Activities

The Village follows the practice of pooling cag
Treasurer except for restricted funds generally hy
Funds, investments of the Employees” Retiremen
Each fund’s portion of total cash and investmer
balance sheet as cash and cash equivalents and inv

The Treasurer is authorized to invest in the followil
provided in Swansea Municipal Code Section 2-31

e (eneral Obligation Securities of the Unif

e Interest Bearing Savings Accounts, Cert
where such investments are insured in ]
Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Cor]

e Short-term discount obligations of the Fe

h and investments of all funds with the Village
eld by outside custodians on behalf of Enterprise
it Fund held by trustees, and other similar funds.
its is summarized by fund type in the combined
pstments.

ng types of investments subject to the provisions as
2.

ed States of America or of the State of Illinois.
ficates of Deposit and Time Deposits in any bank
he Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the

horation.

deral National Mortgage Association.

¢ Money Market Mutual Funds registered

fund is limited to bonds, notes, certificat

under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as

s of indebtedness, treasury bills, or other securities

from time to time amended, provided tEt the portfolio of any such money market mutual

now or hereafter issued which are gu
America as to principal and interest,
obligations.

anteed by the full faith of the United States of
and including agreements to repurchase such
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)

Deposits
The Village’s deposits and investments held at April 30, 2014, and reported at fair value, are as
follows:
Carrying
Type Value
Deposits:
Demand deposits $10,766,784
Cash on hand 600
Non-negotiable certificates of deposit 2,131,439
12,898,823
Investments:
External investment pool 884,291

Total Deposits and Investments

Reconciliation to the Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position:

Governmental Activities:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted assets

Business-Type Activities:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted assets
Investments

Custodial Credit Risk- Deposits - Custodial credi
the Village’s deposits may not be returned to it.

all amounts deposited or invested with financial
be collateralized by United States Governmen(
securities shall equal or exceed the portion of the

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments - For an inve
event of the failure of the counterparty, the gove
investment or collateral securities that are in the
all amounts deposited or invested with financial
be collateralized by United States Government
securities shall equal or exceed the portion of th
30, 2014, the Village’s investments were not exp

$13,783,114

$ 5.297,684
104,746

6,249,244
1,528,081
603,359

$ 13,783,114

t risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
The Village’s general investment policy requires
institutions in excess of any insurance limit shall

Securities. The market value of the pledged
deposit requiring collateralization.

stment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the
rnment will not be able to recover the value of its
possession of the outside party. As noted above,
institutions in excess of any insurance limit shall
. Securities. The market value of the pledged
e deposit requiring collateralization. As of April
psed to custodial credit risk this year.
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Investment Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk
information about the potential for fair value |
future. The Village manages its exposure to
investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently li
requirements. Maturities of investments held at 4

Investment Credit Risk - Investment credit risk i
issuer or backer. The Village manages investi
2014, the Village’s investments were rated AAA

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk - Conct
by the Village for any single investment tha

disclosures provide financial statement users with
psses should market interest rates change in the
declines in fair values by diversification. The
quid to enable the Village to meet all operating
April 30, 2014 were all less than one year.

5 the risk of loss due to the failure of the security
ment credit risk by diversification. At April 30,
m.

entration of credit risk is required to be disclosed
t represents 5% or more of total investments

(excluding investments issued by or explicitly gyaranteed by the U.S. government, investments in

mutual funds, investments in external invest
investments). The Village’s investment poli
diversified to eliminate the risk of loss resull
maturity; a specific issuer, or a specific class of s

At April 30, 2014, the Village’s investments wer
risk.

Firefighter’s Pension Fund

At April 30, 2014 the carrying amount of the Firg
the bank balance was $409,499. The deposits
account and certificates of deposit.

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is
Firefighter’s Pension Fund’s deposits may not b
requires that all deposits be fully covered by FDI(
by the financial institution in the Firefighter’s Pens

ment pools and investments in other pooled
cy indicates the investment portfolio shall be
ing from concentration of assets in a specific
gcurities.

e not subject to concentration of investment credit

fighter’s Pension Fund deposits was $410,371 and
were comprised of an interest bearing checking

the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
e returned to it. The Firefighter’s Pension Fund
" insurance or collateralized with investments held
ion’s name.

As of April 30, 2014, the Firefighter’s Pension Fund had the following investments:

Fair

Investment Value
External Investment Pool $ 41,773
Deposits as reported above 410,371
Total Deposits and Investments $ 452,144

Investment Interest Rate Risk - Maturities of inve
year.

stments held at April 30, 2014 were less than one
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Investment Credit Risk - As of April 30, 2014,

ratings were rated AAAm.

Concentration of Credit Risk - As of April 3
concentration of credit risk.

Foreign Currency Risk - As of April 30, 2014, the
risk.

Police Pension Fund

At April 30, 2014, the carrying amount of the Poli
bank balance was $1,169,070. The deposits were
market accounts and certificates of deposits.

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is thg
Pension’s deposits may not be returned to it. Th

covered by FDIC insurance or collateralized with
Police Pension’s name.

As of April 30, 2014, the Police Pension Fund had

ne Firefighter’s Pension Fund’s investments credit

D, 2014, the Firefighter’s Pension Fund has no

Firefighter’s Pension Fund has no foreign currency

ce Pension Fund’s deposits was $1,144,070 and the

comprised of an interest checking account, money

> risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Police
e Police Pension requires that all deposits be fully
investments held by the financial institution in the

the following investments:

Fair
Investment Value

External Investment Pool $ 15734
Mutual Funds 3,587,333
Government Bonds 1,614,343
Corporate Bonds 1,568,319
Municipal Bonds 95,195
6,880,924

Deposits as reported above 1,144,070
Total Deposits and Investments $8,024,994

Interest Rate Risk - The Police Pension Fund’s
order to maintain sufficient liquidity to reflect thg
The policy also requires diversification of the inv
of managing its exposure to fair value losses ari

table represents the investments and maturities of
April 30, 2014.

investment policy limits investment maturities in
> cash flow needs of the fund type being invested.
estment portfolio via length of maturity as a means
sing from increasing interest rates. The following
" the Police Pension Fund’s debt investments as of
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Investment Maturities (in Years)

Investment Type Fair Value Lesis than 1 1-5 6-10 More Than 10
External investment pool $ 15,734 $ 15,734 $ - % - % -
Mutual funds 3,587,333 3,587,333 - - -
Government bonds 1,614,343 282,464 655,999 496,982 178,898
Corporate bonds 1,568,319 30,516 476,352 871,493 189,958
Municipal bonds 95,195 - 20,087 41,351 33,757

$ 6,880,924 $ B916047 $§ 1,152438 $ 1409826 § 402,613

Credit Risk - As of April 30, 2014, the Police Pg
investments in obligations of the U.S. governmet
government, are as follows:

nsion Fund’s investments credit ratings, excluding
nt or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S.

Standard & Moody's Investors
Fair Value Investment Poors Rating Service Rating
$ 15,734 The Ilinois Funds AAAM -
1,568,319  Corporate Bonds AA3to AAA
95,195 Municipal Bonds BBB-tq AA+ BAA3to AAA

Concentration of Credit Risk - As of April 30, 2(

concentration of credit risk subject to disclosure re

Foreign Currency Risk - As of April 30, 2014, the

14, the Police Pension Fund’s investments has no
quirements.

Police Pension Fund has no foreign currency risk.
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS
The following is a summary of changes in Capital Assets for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2014:

Government Activities

Balance Balance
May 1, Additions/ Deletions/ April 30,
2013 Trans fers Transfers 2014
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Construction in progress $ 118956 $§ 1,151,303 $ - § 1,270,259
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Infrastructure -
Annexations 691,600 - - 691,600
Reconstruction 5,357,665 103,569 - 5,461,234
Subdivision/Streets 21,278,131 - - 21,278,131
Fire Department 5,503,550 10,368 - 5,513,918
Governmental 1,094,739 85,458 10,746 1,169,451
Parks 3,939,312 238,425 - 4,177,737
Police Department 797,521 72,759 - 870,280
Streets 2,544,2p2 - - 2,544,222
Total Capital Assets,
Being Depreciated 41,206,740 510,579 10,746 41,706,573
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Infrastructure -
Annexations 258,513 16,540 - 275,053
Reconstruction 1,206,459 133,627 - 1,340,066
Subdivision/Streets 9,188,071 519,658 - 9,707,729
Fire Department 2,728,420 141,204 - 2,869,624
Governmental 581,110 35,456 10,708 605,858
Parks 595,238 99,193 - 694,431
Police Department 577,128 79,026 - 656,154
Streets 1,212,388 136,571 - 1,348,959
Total Accumulated Depreciation 16,347,307 1,161,275 10,708 17,497,874
Total Capital Assets,
Being Depreciated, Net 24,859,433 (650,696) 38 24,208,699
Governmental Activities,
Capital Assets, Net $ 24978389 § 500,607 $ 38 § 25,478,958
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Business-Type Activities

Balance Balance
May|1, Additions/ Deletions/ April 30,
2013 Transfers Transfers 2014
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land $ 30,000 $ - % - 8 30,000
Construction in progress - - - -
Total Capital Assets,
Not Being Depreciated 30,000 - - 30,000
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 444,030 - - 444,030
Sewer systems 13,642,538 19,757 - 13,662,295
Sewer plant expansion * 22,718,517 26,455 - 22,744 972
Equipment 760,401 52,616 - 813,017
Office equipment 4,146 - 1,146 3,000
Total Capital Assets,
Being Depreciated 37,569,632 08,828 1,146 37,667,314
Less: Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and improvements 408,085 7,943 - 416,028
Sewer systems 5,505,793 274,359 - 5,780,152
Sewer plant expansion 1,963,305 859,889 - 2,823,194
Equipment 646,263 25,086 - 671,349
Office equipment 4,088 38 1,127 2,999
Total Accumulated Depreciation 8,5P7.534 1,167,315 1,127 9,693,722
Total Capital Assets,
Being Depreciated, Net 29,042,098 {1,068,487) 19 27,973,592
Business-Type Activities,
Capital Assets, Net $ 29072,098 $ (1,068487) $ 19 $ 28,003,592

* The sewer plant expansion includes $551,924

Depreciation expense was charged to functions in

Govemmental Activies:
General administration
Police protection
Fire protection
Streets
Park
Infrastructure

Total Depreciation Expense for Govemmental Actiyities

Business-Type Activities, Sewerage

the Statement of Activities as follows:

$

b of interest capitalized during the construction period.

35,456
79,026
141,204
136,571
99,193
669,825

1,161,275

1,167,315
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6. LONG TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of changes in the \

April 30,2014,

Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds:
General Obligation Fire Protection Bond
General Obligation Refunding Bonds

Tax Increment Financing Notes:
Project Area 2501 North Illinois Street
Don's Hardware Redevelopment Project

Leases/Notes Payable:

2011 Police Automobile

2013 Police Automobile

2014 Police Automobile
Accrued Compensated Absences

Net Pension Obligation

Other Post Employment Benefit
Obligation

Add: Unamortized premium, net

Long-Term Liabilities - Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:
Notes Payable:
Wastewater Project -
Project # L17-254700
Wastewater Project -
Project # L.17-2786

Accrued Compens ated Absences

Total Business-Type Activities

Village’s Long-Term Liabilities for the year ended

Balance Additions Retirements Balance
May1, and and April 30, Current
2013 Transfers Transfers 2014 Portion
$ 165,000, §$ - % 165000 $ - 3% -
2,115,000 - 15,000 2,100,000 190,000
169,382 - 169,382 - -
48,890 - 8,649 40,241 9,091
3,799 - 3,799 - -
16,357 - 11,510 4,847 4,847
- 27,175 6,739 20,436 13,585
160,981 53,605 41,802 172,784 44,867
284,022 845,186 691,515 437,693 -
328,516 118,865 33,712 413,669 -
$ 3,291,947 $1,044.831 $1,147,108 3,189,670 $ 262,390
33,427
$ 3,223,097
$ 19,526,567 § - $1,201915 $ 18324652 $ 932,151
659,357 - 30,954 628,403 31,342
11,376 7,145 4,046 14,475 14,475
$20,197,300| $ 7,145  $1236915 $18967,530 $ 977968
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Bonds Payable

General obligation bonds are supported by a p
bonds, which are reported in the government-wi
to fund a new fire house. The general obligatic
levies and mature December 1, 2023. Interest ra

At April 30, 2014, the annual cash flow requiren

ledge of the Village’s full faith and credit. These
e statement of net position, were originally issued
m bonds are to be repaid from future property tax
tes range between 2.0% and 2.5% per annum.

lents of bond principal and interest are as follows:

Year Ending
April 30, Principal Interest Total
2015 $ 190,000 $ 44,155 $ 234,155
2016 200,000 40,355 240,355
2017 200,000 36,355 236,355
2018 200,000 32,355 232,355
2019 205,000 28,355 233,355
2020-2024 1,105,000 76,540 1,181,540
Total $2,100,000 $258,115 $2,358,115

Tax Increment Revenue Notes Payable

The Village has entered into agreements to issy
paying a portion of the redevelopment costs i
district redevelopment plans. The notes are
attributable to the increase in assessed value @
economic activity taxes with no specific debt se
obligation of the Village. The obligations of t}
the maturity dates, whether or not the principal
The notes bear interest at a rate of 5% and matur

Lease/Notes Payable

The following is a schedule of governmental act]

1e tax increment revenue notes for the purpose of
| connection with several tax increment financing
pavable solely from payments in lieu of taxes
f real property in the project area and additional
rvice requirements, and do not constitute a general
ne Village with respect to these notes terminate on
amount or interest thereon has been paid in full.
e at various dates, the latest being May 19, 2020.

vities leases/notes payable payments as of:

Year Ending Lease/Notes
April 30, Payable

2015 $ 18,603

2016 6,872

Total 25,475

Less: Interest 192

Outstanding Principal $ 25,283
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Notes payable for governmental activities ¢

consist of the following:

Note payable to a financial institution for the purchase of a police vehicle

(initial proceeds of $27,175), payable in
including terest at 1.04%, maturity
collateralized by the police vehicle.

monthly installments 0of$1,145
date October 30, 2015,

Note payable to a financial institution for the purchase of a police vehicle

(initial proceeds of $22,972), payable in
including interest at 1.7%, maturity
collateralized by the police vehicle.

Total Governmental Activities

Notes payable for business-type activities (

Note payable to the Illnois Environments
for the improvement of the Wastewater
by future revenue of sewer system.
$21,156,246 is payable in semi-annual
interest at a rate of 2.5%.

Note payable to the Illinois Environment;
for the improvement of the Western Awvg
by future revenue of sewer system. The
is payable in semi-annual installments of p
1.25%.

Total Business-Type Activities

In October 2008, the Village entered into a
Protection Agency (“IEPA”) for the construct]
wastewater treatment facility. For the purposes
shall consider the principal of the loan to consist
accrued on these disbursements. The IEPA ¢
period at 2.50% interest. The first scheduled rej
due in May 2030.

In December 2010, the Village entered into 3
Protection Agency (“1EPA™) for improvements {
for semi-annual payments for a twenty-year per]
was due April 2013 with the final payment due i

$ 20,436
monthly mstallments of $975
date September 26, 2014,
4,847
$ 25,283

ronsist of the following:

1l Protection Agency ("IEPA")
Treatment Plan, collateralized
The total loan amount of
installments of principal and
$18.324,652

il Protection Agency ("IEPA™)
enue Lift Station, collateralized
total loan amount of $673,139
rincipal and interest at a rate of
628,403

$ 18,953,055

loan agreement with the Illinois Environmental
on, improvement and expansion of the Village’s
5 of calculating the repayment schedule, the IEPA
of all unpaid disbursements plus all unpaid interest
alls for semi-annual payments for a twenty-year
payment was due May 2011 with the final payment

loan agreement with the Illinois Environmental
o the Western Avenue Lift Station. The IEPA calls
od at 1.25% interest. The first scheduled payment
n April 2032.
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At April 30, 2014, the annual cash flow requireme

nt of note principal and interest are as follows:

Year Ending
April 30, Principa Interest Total
2015 $ 963,493 $ 460,085 $ 1,423,578
2016 987,335 436,243 1,423,578
2017 1,011,772 411,806 1,423,578
2018 1,036,819 386,759 1,423,578
2019 1,062,491 361,087 1,423,578
2020-2024 5,720,529 1,397,360 7,117,889
2025-2029 6,445,561 652,328 7,117,889
2030-2032 1,705,055 36,942 1,741,997
Total $ 18,993,055 $4,142.610 $ 23,095,665

SHORT-TERM DEBT ACTIVITY
Line of Credit

The Village entered into an unsecured line of cred;
$500,000. Accrued interest is due and payable i
0.26% at April 30, 2014. The agreement expires
year ended April 30, 2014.

RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS

A, Hlinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Plan Description

The Village’s agent defined benefit pensid
and disability benefits, post retirement in
beneficiaries. The employer plan is affilj
(IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan
may only be changed by the General A

t agreement that allows the Village to receive up to
n monthly installments at a rate of prime rate less
September 5, 2014, There was no activity for the

n plan for Regular employees provides retirement
creases, and death benefits to plan members and
jated with the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Benefit provisions are established by statute and
ssembly of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a

publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required

supplementary information (RSI). That rej

port may be obtained on-line at www.imrf.org.
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Funding Policy

As set by statute, the Village’s Regular plg

of their annual covered salary. The staf
necessary, in addition to member contribuyl

employees. The employer annual required

percent. The employer also contribyl

supplemental retirement benefits, all of W

rates for disability and death benefits ar
supplemental retirement benefits rate is sef

Annual Pension Cost

The required contribution for calendar year

in members are required to contribute 4.50 percent
[ute requires employers to contribute the amount
lions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own
contribution rate for calendar year 2013 was 14.27
tes for disability benefits, death benefits, and
thich are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution
e set by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the
by statute.

2013 was $141,989.

THREE-YEAR TREND INFORMATION
Actuarial Annual Percentage
Valuation Pension of APC Net Pension
Date Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
12/31/13 $ 141,989 100% $ -
12/31/12 132,42 100% -
12/31/11 135,083 100% -

The required contribution for 2013 was de
valuation using the entry age normal ac
December 31, 2011, included (a) 7.50 per
expenses and direct investment expenses
attributable to inflation, (c) additional pr
per year depending on age and service, af]
benefit increases of 3% annually. The acty
determined using techniques that spread th
of investments over a five-year period wit
value of assets. The Village’s Regulg
December 31, 2011 is being amortized as
year basis.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of December 31, 2013, the most recent
percent funded. The actuarial accrued lial
value of assets was $2,533,360, resultis
(UAAL) of $965,091. The covered payrd
employees covered by the plan) was $995
was 97 percent.

ermined as part of the December 31, 2011 actuarial
ial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at
ent investment rate of return (net of administrative
, {b) projected salary increases of 4.00% a year,
jected salary increases ranging from 0.4% to 10%
iributable to seniority/merit, and (d) postretirement
larial value of the Village’s regular plan assets was
e effects of short-term volatility in the market value
h a 20% corridor between the actuarial and market
r plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability at
a level percentage of project payroll on an open 30

actuarial valuation date, the regular plan was 72.41
bility for benefits was $3,498,451 and the actuarial
ng in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability
11 for calendar year 2013 (annual payroll of active
,016 and the ratio of UAAL to the covered payroll
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The schedule of funding progress, prese
statements, presents multiyear trend infor
assets is increasing or decreasing over |
benefits.

nted as RSI following the notes to the financial
mation about whether the actuarial value of plan
ime relative to the actuarial accrued liability for

Police and Firefighters” Pension Plans

Police swom personnel are covered by th
employer pension plan, the defined benefj
are governed by Illinois Compiled Statuteg
Illinois legislature. The Village accounts fa

e Police Pension Plan. Although this is a single-
ts and employee and employer contribution levels
(40 ILCS 5/3-1) and may be amended only by the
r the plan as a pension trust fund.

The Police Pension Plan provides retiremg
Covered employees attaining the age of
service are entitled to receive an annual
attached to the rank held on the last day|
whichever is greater. The annual benefit g
additional vear of service over 20 years {
salary. Employees with at least 10 years 4
at or after age 60 and receive a reduced be

nt benefits as well as death and disability benefits.
50 or more with 20 or more years of creditable
retirement benefit equal to one-half of the salary
of service, or for one vear prior to the last day,
hall be increased by 2.50% of such salary for each
ip to 30 years, to a maximum of 75.00% of such
ut less than 20 years of credited service may retire
nefit. The monthly benefit of a police officer who

retired with 20 or more years of service
following the first anniversary date of ret

after January 1, 1977 shall be increased annually,
irement and upon reaching the age of at least 55

years, by 3.00% of the original pension and 3.00% of the current pension amount annually

thereafter. The pension of a police office
more years of creditable service shall be 1
police officer’s age is under age 55.

Employees are required by ILCS to cox
Pension Plan. If an employee leaves cove
accumulated employee contributions maj
Village is required to contribute the rem
actuarially determined by an enrolled actug
the year 2040 to fund up to 90% of the tota

The Village currently has five retirees
disabled individuals receiving benefits, ang

Fire sworn personnel are covered by the Fj
employer pension plan, the defined benef]
are governed by [llinois Compiled Statutes
Illinois legislature. The Village accounts f

The Firefighters’ Pension Plan provides 1
benefits. Covered employees attaining {
creditable service are entitled to receive an
attached to the rank held in the fire servig
increased by 2.50% of such salary for eag
30 years of service, to a maximum of 75

r who is retiring after attaining age 50 with 10 or
educed by one-half of 1% for each month that the

itribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Police
red employment with less than 20 years of service,
i be refunded without accumulated interest. The
aining amounts necessary to finance the plan as
iry. Effective January 1, 2011, the Village has until
1 actuarial liabilities for the Police Pension Plan.

and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits, 3
| 19 active employees.

refighters’ Pension Plan. Although this is a single-
ts and employee and employer contribution levels
(40 ILCS 5/4-1) and may be amended only by the
br the plan as a pension trust fund.

retirement benefits as well as death and disability
he age of 50 or more with 20 or more years of
| annual retirement benefit of one-half of the salary
e at the date of retirement. The pensions shall be
h additional year over 20 years of service through
.00% of such salary. Employees with at least ten
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years but less than 20 years of credited g
reduced retirement benefit. The monthly j
or more years of service after January 1, 1
anniversary date of retirement and paid uj
original pension and 3.00% of the current {

ervice may retire at or after age 60 and receive a
pension of a covered employee who retired with 20
977 shall be increased annually, following the first
jon reaching the age of at least 55 by 3.00% of the
pension amount annually thereafter.

If hired on or after January 1, 2011, eligit
The benefit is 2.5% times final average
years) times service, subject to a maximy
service may retire at or after age 50 and red

vility is age 55 with 10 years of creditable service.
salary (highest 8 years consecutive out of last 10
Im of 75%. Employees with at least ten years of
eive a reduced benefit.

Covered employees are required to contril
Pension Plan. If an employee leaves cove
accumulated employee contributions may
Village is required to finance the plan ¢
Effective January 1, 2011, the Village hag
actuarial liabilities for the Firefighters® Pd
employees participating in the Plan.

ute 9.455% of their base salary to the Firefighters’
red employment with less than 20 years of service,
be refunded without accumulated interest. The
1s actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary.
until the year 2040 to fund up to 90% of the total
msion Plan. The Village currently has two active

Significant Investments

There are no significant investments (othe
any one organization that represent 5.00%
the Firefighters” Pension Plans. The fair

r than mutual funds and certificate of deposits) in
or more of plan net position for either the Police or
value of investments are valued at market using

quoted market prices.

Annual Pension Costs

Employer contributions have been determined as follows:

Police Firefighters’
Pension Pension
Actuarial Valuation Date 04/30/14 04/30/14
Actuarial Cost Method Prpjected unit Projected unit
¢redit cost credit cost
Asset Valuation Method Market Market
Amortization Method Level Level
Percentage of Percentage of
Payroll Payroll
Amortization Period 22.58 30
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Police Firefighters’
Pension Pension
Significant Actuarial Assumptions
a) Rate of Return on 5.00% 5.00%
Present and Future Assets Compounded Compounded
Annually Annually
b) Projected Salary Increase — 3.0% 3.0%
Attributable to Inflation Compounded Compounded
Annually Annually
¢) Additional Projected Not Not
Salary Increases — Available Available
Seniority/Merit
d) Post-Retirement Benefit 3.0% 3.0%
Increases Compounded Compounded
Annually Annually

Employer annual pension costs (APC), actual contributions and the net pension obligation
(NPO) are as follows. The NPO is the cumulative difference between the Annual Required

Contribution (ARC) and the contributions actually made.

Police Firefighters’
Pension Pension

Annual Pension Cost (APC)

2012 $722,563 $43,797

2013 759,613 41,404

2014 798,087 47,099
Actual Contribution

2012 $560,174 $39,603

2013 664,767 42.926

2014 650,493 41,022
Percentage of ARC Contributed

2012 77.5% 90.4%

2013 87.6% 103.7%

2014 81.7% 87.1%
NPO {Obligation)

2012 $178.886 $11.812

2013 273,732 10,290

2014 421,326 16,367
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E. Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of April 30, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plans were 48.8% funded.
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $17.5 million, and the actuarial value of assets
was $8.5 million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $9 million.
The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $1.9
million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 464.6%.

9. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

In addition to providing the pension benefits described in Note 8, the Village is required by state
statute to provide for continuation of medical, prescription drug and dental insurance to employees
who retire from the Village who meet the retirement requirements of IMRF. Retirees who elect to
participate must pay 100% of the premium in effect for the current plan year or any subsequent year
at the premium rates in effect at that time. Since the retirees pay the premium for each year, the
Village share of any premium cost is determined on the basis of a blended rate or implicit rate
subsidy calculation. The plan is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan. The benefits and
benefit levels are governed by Village policy. The plan is not accounted for as a trust fund since an
irrevocable trust has not been established. A stand-alone financial report is not available for the
plan.

Funding Policy

The Village currently pays for the implicit rate subsidy associated with these post-employment
health care benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. As of April 30, 2014, no trust fund has been
established for the funding of the plan’s post-employment benefit obligation, resulting in the
classification of all of the liability as unfunded. Additional information is presented as required
supplementary information, schedule of funding progress.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Village’s OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected
to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess)
over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the Village’s
annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the
Village’s net OPEB obligation, as of April 30, 2014:
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Annual Required Contribution $123,813
Interest on net OPEB obligtion 16,426
Amortization of net OPEB obligation (21,374)
Annual OPEB cost 118,865
Contributions made * 33,712
Increase in net OPEB obligation 85,153
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of vear 328,516
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $413,669

* Contribution related to implicit rate subsidy.

The net OPEB obligation is reflected as a long-term liability within the accompanying basic
financial statements.

Historical trend information about the Village’s participation in the plan is as follows:

Annual Percentage
Plan Year Required OPEB Employer of ARC Net OPEB
Ended April 30, Cost contributions Contributed Obligation
2012 $ 119,889 § 30,636 25.6% $ 234,503
2013 $ 124649 § 30,636 24.6% $ 328516
2014 $ 118865 § 33,712 28.4% $ 413,669

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of May 1, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was not prefunded. For the
year ended April 30, 2014, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $1,328,625, and the
actuarial value of assets was zero, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of
$1,328,625. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
approximately $2.7 million, and the rate of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 49.5 percent.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined under the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress is presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements. Multi-year trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits will be presented in subsequent years.
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10.

Annual Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial statement reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
(the plan understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefits costs between
the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

In the May 1, 2014 actuarial valuation, the projected credit cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 5.0 percent investment rate of return assuming the benefits are not pre-
funded. The discount rate is based on the expected earnings of the Village’s general fund. Payroll
is assumed to increase at a rate of 5.0 percent per annum. The healthcare trends used in the
valuation are based on long term healthcare trends at an initial rate of 8.0 percent graded down 1.0
percent each year to an ultimate rate of 5.0 percent. The health mortality is based on the RP 2000
Mortality Tables. The amortization period of the unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) is 30
years. The remaining amortization period at April 30, 2014, was 28 years.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Significant losses are covered by commercial insurance for all major programs: property, liability
and workers® compensation. During the year ended April 30, 2014, there were no significant
reductions in coverage. Also, there have been no settlement amounts which have exceeded
insurance coverage in the past three years.

The Village is a member of the Illinois Public Risk Fund, a joint risk management pool of cities and
villages throughout the State of Illinois, through which workers' compensation coverage is provided
in excess of specified limits for the members, acting as a single insurable unit.

The Village participates in the Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC). IPBCisa
public entity risk pool established by certain units of local government in Illinois to administer
some or all of the personnel benefit programs (primarily medical, dental and life insurance
coverage) offered by these members to their officers and employees and to the officers and
employees of certain other governmental, quasi governmental and nonprofit public service entities.
The IPBC receives, processes and pays such claims as may come within the benefit program of
each member. Management consists of a Board of Directors comprised of one appointed
representative from each member. In addition, there are two officers: a Benefit Administrator and a
Treasurer. The Village does not exercise any control over the activities of the IPBC beyond its
representation on the Board of Directors.
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11.

12.

13.

14,

CONTINGENCIES

The Village has received funding from state and federal grants in the current and prior years which
are subject to audits by the granting agencies. The Village believes any adjustments that may arise
from these audits will be insignificant to Village operations.

BUDGET

Expenditures of the General Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Tax Increment Financing Fund
exceeded those budgeted when including transfers for the year ended April 30, 2014. In addition, a
deficit was budgeted in the Motor Fuel Tax Fund.

TRANSFERS

During the year ended April 30, 2014, a transfer was made from the Capital Projects Fund to the
Debt Service Fund for the fire house bond payment.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The accounting principles governing the reported amounts, presentation and related disclosures
are subject to change from time to time based on new pronouncements and/or rules issued by
various governing bodies. The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible
for establishing generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for state and local
governments.

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 67 “Financial Reporting for Pension Plans” and
Statement No. 68 “Accounting and Reporting for Pensions”. The objective of these Statements
is to revise existing accounting and financial reporting requirements for most pension plans, and
to revise and establish new financial reporting requirements for most governments that provide
their employees with pension benefits, The requirements in Statement No. 67 are effective for
periods beginning after June 15, 2013, and the requirements in Statement No 68 are effective
for periods beginning after June 15, 2014.

In January 2013, the GASB issued Statement No. 69 “Government Combinations and Disposals
of Government Operations.” The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting
by addressing accounting and financial reporting for government combinations and disposals of
government operations. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning
after December 15, 2013.

In April 2013, the GASB issued Statement No. 70 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Nonexchange Financial Guarantees.” The objective of this Statement is to improve recognition,
measurement, and disclosure guidance for state and local governments that have extended or
received financial guarantees that are nonexchange transactions. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2013.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (continued)

15.

In November 2013, the GASB issued Statement No. 71 “Pension Transition for Contributions
Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.” This
Statement amends paragraph 137 of Statement No. 68 to require that, at transition, a government
recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources for its pension contributions, if any, made
subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net pension liability. Statement No. 68, as
amended, continues to require that beginning balances for other deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions be reported at transition only if it is
practical to determine all such amounts. The requirements in this Statement are effective
simultaneously with the requirements of Statement No. 68 which is effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2014.

The effects on the Village’s financial statements as a result of the adoption of these new
pronouncements are unknown.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

During the year ended April 30, 2014, the following affected the beginning net position and fund
balance of the Village:

Governme ntal
Government-Wide Financial Statements Activities
Net position, beginning of year, as originally reported $ 27349616
Implementation of GASB Statement No. 65, "ltems Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities." This statement requires
that bond issuance costs be shown as current-period
outflows of resources (expenses). (33,756)
Effect of governmental fund financial statement adjustment. 41,703
Net position, beginning of year, restated $ 27,357,563
General - Sewer Operations
Governmental and M aintenance -
Fund Financial Statements Fund Proprietary Fund
Fund balance/net position, beginning of year,
as originally reported $ 1,663,077 S 13,005,799
Member balances in the IPBC terminal reserve account
are declared dividends of the cooperative and
are considered a prepaid asset of the Village. 41,703 2,362
Fund balance/net position, beginning of year, restated $ 1,704,780  $ 13,008,161
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VILLAGE OF SWANSEA
SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts Variance -
Original Final Favorable
REVENUES Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Property taxes $ 152,560 $ 152,560 $ 178,278 $ 25,718
Township road and bridge tax 99,000 99.000 111,880 12,880
Licenses and permits 76,104 76,104 62,635 (13,469)
Utility tax 768,000 768,000 809.015 41,015
Intergovernmental 2,680,000 2,680,000 2,811,899 131,899
Fines 51,996 51,996 38.964 (13,032)
Foreign fire tax 14,000 14,000 25.234 11,234
Franchise fees 388,000 388,000 381.899 (6,101)
Interest income 2,160 2,160 3.868 1,708
Administrative fee 75,396 75,396 75.396 -
Miscellaneous 130,821 130,821 123.664 (7,157)
Rental 131,513 131,513 44,397 (87,116)
Donations 9,000 9,000 10,181 1,181
Grants - - 12,500 12,500
Taxes to police pension 585,000 585.000 739,600 154,600
Taxes to firefighters pension 41,000 41,000 50,286 9,286
Total Revenues 5,204,550 5,204,550 5,479,696 275,146
EXPENDITURES
General administration 682,992 682,992 581,486 101,506
Planning and zoning 224,425 224,425 222,407 2,018
Police protection 2,494,570 2,494,570 2,393,799 100,771
Police pension 585,000 585,000 739,600 (154,600)
Fire protection 227,496 227,496 226,224 1,272
Fire pension 41,000 41,000 50,286 (9,286)
Streets 574,760 574,760 583,908 (9.148)
Park 72,518 72,518 60,476 12,042
Senior services 750 750 75 675
Augdit 32,500 32,500 28,809 3,691
Workmen's compensation and lHability insurance 132,165 132,165 159,969 (27,804)
Capital outlay 19,050 19,050 77,329 (58,279)
Total Expenditures 5,087,226 5,087,226 5,124,368 (37,142)
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 117,324 117,324 355,328 238,004
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers from other funds - - - -
Transfers to other funds - - - -
Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses $ 117,324 $ 117,324 355328 § 238,004
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year, Restated 1,704,780

Fund Balances - End of Year $ 2,060,108

See accompanying independent auditor’s report
and notes to budgetary comparison information Page 55




VILLAGE OF SWANSEA
SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON - MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30,2014

Budgeted Amounts Variance -
Original Final Favorable
REVENUES Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Property taxes $ - 3 - 3 - % -
Township road and bridge tax - - - -
Licenses and permits - - - -
Utility tax - - - -
Intergovernmental 370,000 370,000 446,441 76,441
Fines - - - -
Foreign fire tax - - - -
Franchise fees - - - -
Interest income 718 718 956 238
Administrative fee - - - -
Miscellaneous 2,500 2,500 4,163 1,663
Rental - - - -
Denations - - - -
Grants - - - -
Taxes to police pension - - - -
Taxes to firefighters pension - - - -
Total Revenues 373,218 373,218 451,560 78,342
EXPENDITURES
General administration - - - -
Planning and zoning - - - -
Police protection - - - -
Police pension - - - -
Fire protection - - - -
Fire pension - - - -
Streets - - - -
Park - - - -
Senior services - - - -
Audit - - - -
Workmen's compensation and liability insurance - - - -
Motor fuel tax 387,946 387,946 243,586 144,360
Special business district - - - -
Tax increment financing - - - -
Capital outlay 396,208 396,208 143,438 252,770
Debt service
Lease and note payments - - - -
Bond principal retired - - - -
Interest and service charge - - - -
Total Expendifures 784,154 784,154 387,024 397,130
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (410,936) (410,936) 64,536 475,472
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers from other funds - - - -
Transfers to other funds - - - -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses $ (410,936) $ (410,936) 64,536 3 475,472
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 361,471
Fund Balances - End of Year $ 426,007
See accompanying independent auditor’s report
and notes to budgetary comparison information Page 56




VILLAGE OF SWANSFEA

SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON — SPECIAL BUSINESS DISTRICT FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014

REVENUES

Property taxes
Township road and bridge tax
Licenses and permits
Utility tax
Intergovernmental
Fines
Foreign fire tax
Franchise fees
Interest income
Administrative fee
Miscellaneous
Rental
Donations
Grants
Taxes to police pension
Taxes to firefighters pension

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
General administration
Planning and zoning
Police protection
Police pension
Fire protection
Fire pension
Streets
Park
Senior services
Audit
Workmen's compensation and liability insurance
Motor fuel tax
Special business district
Tax increment financing
Capital outlay
Debt service
Lease and note payments
Bond principal retired
Interest and service charge
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year

Fund Balances - End of Year

Budgeted Amounts

Original
Budget

Final
Budget

Actual

Variance -
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

$ -

277,500

280,195

280,195

277,400

38,000

22,000

38,000

22,000

60,000

60,060

12,866

47,134

220,195

220,195

264,534

44,339

$ 220,195

$ 220,195

264,534

1,181,134
$ 1,445,668

$ 44,339

See accompanying independent auditor’s report
and notes to budgetary comparison information
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VILLAGE OF SWANSEA

SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON — TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30,2014

REVENUES
Property taxes
Township road and bridge tax
Licenses and permits
Utility tax
Intergovernmental
Fines
Foreign fire tax
Franchise fees
Interest income
Administrative fee
Miscellaneous
Rental
Donations
Grants
Taxes to police pension
Taxes to firefighters pension

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
General administration
Planning and zoning
Police protection
Police pension
Fire protection
Fire pension
Streets
Park
Senijor services
Audit
Workmen's compensation and liability insurance
Motor fuel tax
Special business district
Tax increment financing
Capital outlay
Debt service
Lease and note payments
Bond principal retired
Interest and service charge
Total Expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year
Fund Balances - End of Year

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final
Budget Budget

Variance -
Favorable

Actual (Unfavorable)

$ 445,502 § 445,502

$ 451,112 %

5,610

450,704 450,704

455,490

29,000 29,000
461,700 461,700

8,649 8,649

5,001 5,001

30,186
481,815

8,649

2,501

(1,186)
(20,115)

2,500

504,350 504,350

523,151

(18,801)

(53,646)  (53,646)

(67,661)

(14,015)

$ (53.646) $ (53,646)

(67.661) §
1,547,086

$ 1,479,425

(14,015)

See accompanying independent auditor’s report
and notes to budgetary comparison information
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VILLAGE OF SWANSEA
SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON INFORMATION
APRIL 30, 2014

Note 1.

Budgetary Accounts

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with the GAAP. Annual budgets are adopted for all
funds. All annual budgets lapse at fiscal year-end.

The Village uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary information reflected
in the financial statements:

Village Management prepares the operating budget for the fiscal year commencing May 1.
Public meetings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. During the vear, the budget is
legally enacted through passage of an ordinance and is amended as necessary by action of the
Board. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control service during the
vear for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund and Capital Projects
Funds.

In the event the budget needs to be amended, a majority of the voting members must approve
the amended budget in a regular meeting. The original budget was approved April 15, 2013.

The Village does not utilize an encumbrance system.
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VILLAGE OF SWANSEA
SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS -
DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

APRIL 30, 2014
Actuarial

Accrued UAAL asa
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of (AAL)- AAL Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation Assets Entry Age {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (h) (b-a) {a/b) () ((b-a)/c)

Illinois Municipal Retirement

12/31/13 $2,533,360  $3,498.451 § 965,091 7241%  § 995,016 96.99%
12/31/12 $2,572,040  $3,622,098  $1,050,058 71.01%  $1,050,889 99.92%
1231/11 $2,233,866  $3,382,239  §1,148,373 66.05%  $1,064,927 107.84%

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2013 is $2,976,724. On a market
basis, the funded ratio would be 85.09%.

The actuarial value of assets and accrued liability cover active and inactive members who have service
credit with the Village of Swansea. They do not include amounts for retirees. The actuarial accrued
liability for retirees is 100% funded.

Police Pension Fund

4/30/14 $8,026,065 $16,736,104  $8,710,039 47.96%  $1,806,672 482.10%
4/30/13 $7,884,576 $15,757.888  $7,873.312 50.04%  $1,372,119 573.80%
4/30/12 $6,983,687 $14,791,155  $7,807,468 47.22% 81,332,154 586.10%

Firefighters’ Pension Fund

4/30/14 $495,096 $730,208 $ 235,112 67.80% $118,549 198.30%
4/30/13 $435,991 $653,526 $ 217,535 66.71% $108,411 200.70%
4/30/12 $381,725 $520,674 $ 138,949 73.30% $107,500 129.30%

See accompanying independent auditor’s report Page 60




VILLAGE OF SWANSEA
SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS —
DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

APRIL 30,2014
Annual Required Percentage
Year Contribution Contributed

Police Pension Fund

04/30/14 $796,522 81.67%

04/30/13 $758,592 87.63%

04/30/12 $722.,469 77.54%
Firefighters’ Pension Fund

04/30/14 $47.254 87.10%

04/30/13 $41,336 103.68%

04/30/12 $44.261 90.42%

See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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VILLAGE OF SWANSEA
SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS —
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PROGRAM
APRIL 30,2014

The following required supplementary information relates to the Village’s other post-employment
benefits program. The Village implemented GASB Statement No. 45 for the year ended April 30, 2010;
therefore, information for prior years is not available. Actuarial valuations are required biennially as
permitted by GASB Statement No. 45.

Unfunded
Actuarial UAAL asa
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Value of Accrued Liability Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Liability {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (@ (b) (b-a) (a/b) © ((b)-a)'c)
3/122012 - $1,377.,670  §1,377.670 0.0% $2,656,053 51.9%
5/1/2013 - $1,453,711  $1.453,711 0.0% $2,408,927 60.3%
5/1/2014 - $1,328,625  §$1,328,625 0.0% $2,683,646 49.5%

Note: The results shown above are based on the baseline assumptions with respect to the medical
inflation rate, as discussed in the Sensitivity Analysis section of the actuary report. Please note that the
baseline discount rate of 5.0 percent assumes that the Village will not prefund its retiree medical program.
The discount rate is based on the expected eamnings of the Village’s general fund.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report Page 62
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VILLAGE OF SWANSEA

SWANSEA, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
APRIL 30, 2014
Sewer
Sewer Capital
Operations and Sewer Replacement &
Maintence Reserve Improvement
Fund (21) Fund (25) Fund (22) Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,908,306 $ 38,615 $ 4,302,323 $ 6,249,244
Investments 603,359 1,528,081 2,131,440
Accounts receivable - trade (net) 420,882 - - 420,882
Interest receivable 666 1,987 2,653
Prepaid insurance 40,188 - - 40,188
Total Current Assets 2,369,376 642,640 5,832,391 8,844,407
Capital assets, net of depreciation 28,003,592 - - 28,003,592
Total Assets 30,372,968 642,640 7,360,472 36,847,999
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 99,713 - - 99,713
Accrued interest pay able 209,175 - - 209,175
Accrued wages and payroll taxes 5,720 - - 5,720
Vacation pay able 14,475 - - 14,475
Current portion of loans pay able 963,493 - - 963,493
Total Current Liabilities 1,292,576 - - 1,292,576
Long-Term Liabilities
Loans payable 17,989,562 - - 17,989,562
Total Liabilities 19,282,138 - - 19,282,138
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 9,050,537 - - 9,050,537
Unrestricted 2,040,293 642,640 5,832,391 8,515,324
Total Net Position $ 11,090,830 3 642,640 3 5,832,391 $ 17,565,861
See accompanying independent auditor’s report Page 63




VILLAGE OF SWANSEA

SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN

FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014

Sewer
Sewer Capital
Operations and Sewer Replacement &
Maintenance Reserve Improvement
Fund {21) Fund (25) Fund (22) Total
Operating Revenues
Charges for services $ 2432363 §% - 5 - $ 2432363
Tap-in and inspection fees 13,050 - - 13,050
Total Operating Revenues 2,445,413 - - 2,445 413
Operating Expenses
Personnel services 260,643 - - 260,643
Contractual services 653,166 - - 653,166
Commoeodities 46,459 - - 46,459
Depreciation expense 1,167,315 - - 1,167,315
Administrative fee/general fund 75,396 - - 75,396
Total Operating Expenses 2,202,979 - - 2,202,979
QOperating Income 242,434 - - 242,434
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 5,315 9,198 18,623 33,136
Interest expense (477,013) - - (477,013)
(Loss) on disposal of capital assets (19) - - (19)
Total Non-Operating Revenues
(Expenses) 471,717) 9,198 18,623 (443,896)
Income (Expense) Before Operating Transfers (229,283) 9,198 18,623 (201,462)
Operating Transfers
Operating transfers in - - 3,988,048 3,088,048
Operating transfers out (1,688,048) (2,300,000} - (3,988,048)
Total Operating Transfers (1,688,048) (2,300,000) 3,988,048 -
Change in Net Position (1,917,331) (2,290,802) 4,006,671 (201,462)
Net Position - Beginning of Year, Restated 13,008,161 2,933,442 1,825,720 17,767,323
Net Position - End of Year $ 11,090,830 § 642,640 § 5832391 § 17,565,861
See accompanying independent auditor’s report Page 64




VILLAGE OF SWANSEA
SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014

Sewer
Sewer Capital
Operations and Sewer  Replacement &
Maintenance Reserve Improvement
Fund (21) Fund (25) Fund (22) Total
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received from customers $ 2428119 $ - 8 - $2.428,119
Cash pay ments for employees services (256,960) - - (256,960)
Cash payments for goods and services (736,046) - - (736,046)
Net Cash Provided By
Operating Activities 1,435,113 - - 1,435,113
Cash Flows From Noncapital
Financing Activities
Transfers Among Funds (Net) (1,688,048) (2,300,000) 3,988,048 -
Net Cash (Used In) Provided By Noncapital
Financing Activities (1,688,048) (2,300,000) 3,988,048 -
Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Acquisition of plant assets (98.828) - - (98,828)
Principal debt pay ments (1,232,869) - - (1,232,869)
Interest paid (490,708) - - (490,708)
Net Cash Used In Capital and
Related Financing Activities (1,822,405) - - (1,822,405)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Proceeds from maturity of investments - - 1,825,720 1,825,720
Acquisition of investments - - (1,528,081) (1,528,081)
Receipts of investment income 5,315 8,532 16,636 30,483
Net Cash Provided By
Investing Activities 5,315 8,532 314,275 328,122
Net (Decrease) Increase In Cash and
Cash Equivalents (2,070,025) (2,291,468) 4,302,323 (59,170)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 3,978,331 2,330,083 - 6,308,414
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 1,908,306 § 38,615 $ 4,302,323 § 6,249,244

See accompanying independent auditor’s report Page 65




VILLAGE OF SWANSEA
SWANSEA. ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — PROPRIETARY FUNDS
(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014

Sewer
Sewer Capital
Operations and Sewer Replacement &
Maintenance Reserve Improvement
Fund (21) Fund (25) Fund (22) Total

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided By Operating Activities:
Operating Income $ 242,434 § - § - $ 242434
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating
Income to Net Cash Provided
By Operating Activities
Depreciation 1,167,315 - - 1,167,315

Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Increase in accounts receivables (17,294) - - (17,294)
Increase in prepaid insurance (13,469) - - (13,469)
Increase in accounts payable 52,307 - - 52,307
Increase in accrued liabilities 721 - - 721
Increase in vacation pay able 3,099 - - 3,099
Total Adjustments 1,192,679 - - 1,192,679

Net Cash Provided By Operating
Activities $ 1435113 $ - 3 - $ 1435113

See accompanying independent auditor’s report Page 66




VILLAGE OF SWANSEA

SWANSEA, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUNDS
APRIL 30, 2014
Police Firefighters’
Pension Pension
Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 558,574 $ 299773 858,347
Investments, at fair value
Certificates of deposit 601,230 152,371 753,601
Managed mutual funds 3,587,333 - 3,587,333
Government bonds 1,614,343 - 1,614,343
Corporate bonds 1,568,319 - 1,568,319
Municipal bonds 95,195 - 95,195
Property tax receivable 762,781 42,859 805,640
Interest receivable 27.087 94 27,181
Other 10,069 - 10,069
Total Assets 8.824.931 495,097 9,320,028
LIABILITIES
Unremitted payroll taxes 3,893 - 3,893
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 632,191 35,521 667,712
NET POSITION
Net position - restricted for
pension benefits 8.188,847 459,576 8.648.423
Total Net Position $ 8,188,847 459,576 8,648,423
See accompanying independent auditor’s report Page 67




VILLAGE OF SWANSEA

SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014

Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension
Fund Fund Total
Additions
Contributions
Employer (from General Fund) $ 699,823 $ 47482 747,305
Employees 144,706 12,524 157,230
Total Contributions 844,529 60,006 904,535
Investment Income
Net appreciation in
fair value of nvestments 35,362 - 35,362
Interest and dividends 182,786 1,185 183,971
Realized gain on sale of investments 274,770 - 274,770
Less: Investment expense 52,287 - 52,287
Net Investment Income 440,631 1,185 441,816
Total Additions 1,285,160 61,191 1,346,351
Deductions
Retirement benefits 469,189 - 469,189
Administrative expenses 8,785 1,576 10,361
Total Deductions 477,974 1,576 479,550
Change in Net Position 807,186 59,615 866,801
Net Position - Beginning of Year 7.381,661 399,961 7,781,622
Net Position - End of Year $ 8,1883847 $ 459,576 8,648,423
See accompanying independent auditor’s report Page 68
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VILLAGE OF SWANSEA

SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

BUDGETARY COMPARISON - DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014

REVENUES

Property taxes

Township road and bridge tax

Licenses and permits

Utility tax

Intergovernmental

Fines

Foreign fire tax

Franchise fees

Interest income

Administrative fee

Miscellaneous

Rental

Donations

Grants

Taxes to police pension

Taxes to firefighters pension

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES

General administration

Planning & zoning

Police protection

Police pension

Fire protection

Fire pension

Streets

Park

Senior services

Audit

Workmen's compensation and liability insurance

Motor fuel tax

Special business district

Tax increment financing

Capital outiay

Debt service
Lease and note payments
Bond principal retired
Interest and service charge

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Transfers from other funds

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year

Fund Balances - End of Year

Budgeted Amounts

Original
Budget

Final
Budget Actual

Variance -
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

$

233,587 $

233,587 $ 239,016

5.429

233,937

233,937 239,454

155,000
108,182

155,000 180,000
108,182 34,830

(25,000)
73,352

263,182

263,182 214,852

48,330

(29,245)

(29,245) 24,602

- 56,754

53,847

56,754

$

(29,245) %

(29,245) 81,356

36,817

$ 118,173

110,601

See accompanying independent auditor’s report
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VILLAGE OF SWANSEA
SWANSEA, ILLINOIS

BUDGETARY COMPARISON — CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts Variance -
Original Final Favorable
REVENUES Budget Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
Property taxes $ - % - % - 3 -
Tovwnship road and bridge tax - - - -
Licenses and permits - - - -
Utility tax - - - -
Intergovernmental 350,000 350,000 349,933 (67)
Fines - - - -
Foreign fire tax - - - -
Franchise fees - - - -
Interest income 1,320 1,320 1,306 (14)
Administrative fee - - - -
Miscellaneous - - 3,213 3,213
Rental - - - -
Donations - - - -
Grants 50,000 50.000 448,206 398,206
Total Revenues 401,320 401,320 802,658 401,338

EXPENDITURES
(General administration - - _ -
Planning & Zoning - - - -
Police protection - - - -
Police pension - - - -
Fire protection - - - _
Fire pension - - - -
Streets - - . .
Park - - - -
Senior services - - - -
Audit - - . -
Workmen's compensation and liability insurance - - - -
Motor fuel tax - - - -
Special business district - - - -
Tax increment financing - - - -
Capital outlay 575,668 575,668 797,295 (221,627)
Debt service
Lease and note payments - - 22,048 (22,048)
Bond principal retired - - - -
Interest and service charge - - 3,504 (3.504)
Total Expenditures 575,668 575,668 822,847 (247,179)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (174,348) (174,348) (20,189) 154,159

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers from other funds - - - -
Transfers to other funds - - (56,754) (56,754)
Lease/purchase proceeds - - 27,175 27,175

Fxcess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses $ (174,348) § (174,348) (49.768) $ 124,580

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 569,101
Fund Balances - End of Year $§ 519,333

See accompanying independent auditor’s report Page 70
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